
         

 

 

BLUE LAKE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
AUGUST 8, 2023 

1:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.bluelakecdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
BLUE LAKE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
WildBlue Social Building 

18721 WildBlue Boulevard 
Fort Myers, Florida 33913 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
August 8, 2023 

1:00 P.M. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….......Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. July 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………….............Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….Page 7 

2. Receive Public Comments on Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget………...Page 10 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting an Annual Assessment Resolution Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024…………………………………………………………………………………Page 20 

H. Old Business 

1. Update on Repair of Retaining Wall Project 

2. Update on Repairs to Nusbaum Property 

3. Consider Approval of Funding Agreement between the District and Lennar…………………..Page 24 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule…...Page 31 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy…………………….Page 33 

3. Update on Fence Repairs 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

 Financials……………………………………………………………………………………Page 37 

2. Engineer’s Report 

3. Attorney’s Report 

 Discussion Regarding Required Ethics Training 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
JULY 11, 2023 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 11, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Blue Lake Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 1:13 p.m. in the Conference Room of the Offices of Lennar located at 
10461 Ben C. Pratt, Six Mile Cypress Parkway, Fort Myers, Florida 33966. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Naples Daily News on July 3, 2023, as legally required.  
 
C.  ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Board Members constituted a quorum: 
 
Chairman Christ Hasty  Present 
Vice Chairman Scott Edwards  Present 
Supervisor Tommy Dean  Absent 
Supervisor Walter Fluegel Present 
Supervisor Barry Ernst Present 

 
Also present were the following Staff Members: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Meneely Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Kutak Rock LLP 
District Engineer Carl Barraco Barraco and Associates, Inc. 

 
Also present were the following:   
 
John Reis, Wayne Patterson, Marc & Sydell Nusbaum, Steve Hamburger, Larry Noughton and attached 
Sign-In Sheet of 32 with an additional 24 individuals via phone 
 
Hans Wilson & Jack Walter - HWA 
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 9, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
The minutes of the May 9, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Ernst, seconded by Mr. Fluegel and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the Mary 9, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
 2.  June 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the June 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Edwards, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously approving the 
minutes of the June 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
H.  NEW BUSINESS 
  1.  Hans Wilson Presentation on Retaining Wall Report 
 
Mr. Wilson introduced Jack Walter from his office and went over his report, explaining Hurricane Ian, 
the littoral shelves, the established vegetation, the wave energy and erosion, which caused the retaining 
wall to succumb.  He went over the storm surge in the lake, stating that the energy from Ian was 
phenomenal and the retaining wall was designed correctly for its intended application.  He went over 
considerations for a rebuild, adding that there were no specific design standards. 
 
Messrs. Patterson and Reis asked about erosion prior to the storm causing the damage and Mr. Wilson 
stated that the retaining wall was not designed as a seawall and it was the littoral shelf that failed.   Mr. 
Wilson noted, from an engineering perspective, the littoral shelf may have deviated since the location’s 
use as a borrow pit for past 30 years had already been established.  There was general discussion 
regarding emergency repairs or “Band-Aids” with Mr. Wilson indicating that this would only be done if 
it was threatening home foundations. 
 
Mr. Walter went over the modeling used and the information that was available for modeling.  Mr. 
Patterson asked about boar docks being attached to the wall if it is a retaining wall and Mr. Wilson 
advised that they do not recommend such attachments.  Mr. Reis asked about rip rap in the original 
design and Mr. Wilson noted that this changed down the road and that the County only allows 20% of 
the shoreline to be stabilized by rip rap in a residential neighborhood.  Mr. Barraco added that the State 
allows 40%.  Mr. Reis asked if there were special rules, given the depth of the lake, and Mr. Wilson 
noted that the County had deep lake requirements with Mr. Barraco adding that the rules did not apply 
since it was an existing mining lake.  Mr. Reis asked if the County signed off and inspected the original 
plans and Mr. Wilson advised that the engineer of record, Josh Maxwell, would have certified the plans 
to the County.  Another resident asked Mr. Wilson if he would rebuild the same.  Mr. Wilson responded 
by stating that there are comments in the report that a more robust design should be looked at for different 
areas, as there are no standards for these types of walls.  He furthered that the littoral shelves should be 
addressed first and then the wall with wave energy looked at to come up with a design. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

There was general discussion regarding slopes, breakwater and the area being in a hurricane prone state.  
Dr. Hamburger asked about modeling with rip rap and Mr. Wilson stated rip rap was empirical with Mr. 
Walter explaining how they do calculations and use assumptions. 
 
Gregory Mullholic (via phone) stated that he believed the minimum life of the wall should have been 50 
years.  Mr. Wilson stated that if the littoral shelves were stabilized then that should have provided the 
necessary protection, as what was built was what was designed.  He added that retaining walls are not 
designed to survive without a littoral shelf.  Mr. Barraco asked Mr. Wilson if he was aware of any local 
or state requirement for protection on such a lake and Mr. Wilson responded in the negative, stating the 
wall is an investment in the property.  Mr. Wilson suggested putting money into final solutions instead 
of “Band-Aids” and do a priority matrix to do the most critical locations first. 
 
Mr. Noughton asked about finding records and Mr. Wilson stated there were no public records if done 
on the private side.  Mr. Barraco added that his work was public record, as it is based on standards, but 
there is no requirement for this design. 
 
Mr. Edwards indicated that the next step would be to get moving and hire somebody for clean-up.  Mr. 
Barraco suggested letting the residents know that by a date certain the CDD will be cleaning up the area 
so that they need to let us know if they want us to skip their property for any type of forensics.  Ms. 
Meneely stated she would get such a communication out to the Association to distribute to the residents.  
Mr. Hasty stated that he was working on a developer funding agreement with the attorney.   
 
   2.  Fence Considerations 

 Discussion on Hurricane Fence Damage 
 

Ms. Meneely advised that the proposal had not yet been received so this item will be discussed at a 
future meeting. 
 

 Discussion on Fence Vegetation Treatment 
 
Ms. Meneely stated that there were two proposals from Solitude; one was for immediate treatment and 
the other was for a 4x a year treatment as maintenance.  Ms. Meneely noted that this expense was not 
included in the budget. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Fluegel, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously approving both 
Solitude service agreements, as presented. 
 
   3.  Consider Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Developer Funding Agreement 
 
Ms. Meneely advised that the agreement was still in the draft stage and would be brought back to a future 
meeting. 
 
  4.  Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Redesignating the Meeting Location to Adopt a Fiscal 
Year 2023/2024 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-02 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RATIFYING THE RESETTING OF THE LOCATION OF THE 
PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2023/2024; AMENDING RESOLUTION 2023-01 TO SET 
THE PUBLIC HEARING THEREON; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board that they had requested that the August meeting be held at the 
WidlBlue Social Building instead of the offices of Lennar.  Ms. Meneely further noted that this resolution 
formalizes the change in location for the Public Hearing. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hasty, seconded by Mr. Ernst and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 
No. 2023-02, as presented. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  1.  Manager’s Report 
 
Ms. Meneely reminded the Board that the next meeting was scheduled for August 8, 2023, at the 
WildBlue Social Building. 
 
 2.  Engineer’s Report 

 Discussion Regarding Easement/Setbacks 
 

Mr. Barraco advised that he was working on answering some HOA questions regarding setbacks and 
drainage within easements.  He stated that he had looked at plats and the proper easements were in place 
which he has relayed to the residents. 
 

 Discussion Regarding Drainage Issues 
 
Mr. Barraco stated that this concerns the Nusbaum’s property which is at the northernmost part of the 
lake.  He added that clean-up was addressed by the Board earlier in the meeting and he was 
recommending to have a contractor replace the sod and fill with measures to stabilize the area.  Mr. 
Hasty stated that WildBlue had a contractor they were using and he will contact them to get a proposal. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Fluegel, seconded 
by Mr. Edwards and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary     Chairperson/Vice-Chair 
 
 
 

Page 6



Naples ilaily Nrws 
PART OfiHE USA TODAY Ne1WORK, 

Published Daily 
Naples, FL 34110 

BLUE LAKE COMM DEVELOPMENT 

2501 BURNS RD #A 

PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL 33410 

ATTN LAURA ARCHER 

Affidavit of Publication 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 
COUNTY OF BROWN 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared, 
who on oath says that he or she is the Legal Coordinator 
of the Naples Daily News, published in Collier County, 
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a 
PUBLIC NOTICE, was published on the publicly 
accessible website of Collier and Lee Counties, Florida, 
or in a newspaper by print in the issues of, on: 

lssue(s) dated: 7/14/2023 

Affiant further says that the website or newspaper 
complies with all legal requirements for publication in 
chapter 50, Florida Statutes. 

---- ..... .,_....<O; 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, by the legal clerk, 
who is personally Known to me, on JULY 14TH, 2023: 

Publication Cost: $2,688.00 

Ad No: GCI 1083955 
Customer No: 419310 

PO#: PUBLIC NOTICE - DISPLAY AD 2X12 
# of Affidavits: 1 

NANCY HEYR~AN 
Notary Public 

State of Wisconsin 

This is not an invoice 

Page 7



BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTR ICT 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 BUDGET ; NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 

CONSIDER THE IMPOSITION OF OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, ADOPTION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL, AND 

THE LEVY , COLLECTION, AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE SAME; AND 

NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETI NG. 

Upcoming Public Hearings, and Regular Meeting 

The Board of Supervisors ("Board") for the Blue lake Community Development District 
("District") will hold the following two public hearings and a regular meeting: 

August 8, 2023 
1:00p.m. 
WildBlue Social Building 
18721 WildBlue Blvd. 

Fort Myers, Florida 33913 

The first public hearing is being held pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to 
receive public comment and objections on the District's proposed budget ("Proposed 
Budget") for the beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024 ("Fiscal Year 
2023/2024"). The second public hearing is being held pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, to consider the imposition of operations and maintenance special 
assessments ("O&M Assessments'1 upon the lands located within the District. to fund the 
Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024; to consider the adoption of an assessment 
roll; and, to provide for the levy, collection, and enforcement of assessments. At the 
conclusion of the hearings, the Board will, by resolution, adopt a budget and levy O&M 
Assessments as finally approved by the Board. A Board meeting of the District will also be 
held where the Board may consider any other District business. 

DATE: 
TIME: 
LOCATION: 

Description of Assessments 

The District imposes O&M Assessments on benefitted property within the District for the 
purpose of funding the District's general administrative, operations, and maintenance 
budget. A geographic depiction of the property potentially subject to the proposed O&M 
Assessments is identified in the map attached hereto. The table below shows the schedule 
of the ro osed O&M Assessments, which are subiect to chan eat the hearin : 

Land Use Total # of Unit of Proposed O&M Assessment 
Units (Including collection costs/ 

Measurement early payment discounts) 

Platted Lots 423 One Platted Lot $1,103.63 

The proposed O&M Assessments as stated include collection costs and/or early 
payment discounts, which Lee County ("County") may impose on assessments that are 
collected on the County tax bill. Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), Florida 
Statutes, the tien amount shall serve as the "maximum rate" authorized by law for O&M 
Assessments, such that no assessment hearing shall be held or notice provided in future 
years unless the assessments are proposed to be increased or another criterion within 
Section 197.3632(4), Florida Statutes, is met. Note that the O&M Assessments do not 
include any debt service assessments previously levied by the District and due to be 
collected for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. 

For Fiscal Year 2023/2024, the District intends to have the County tax collector 
collect the assessments imposed on certain developed property, and will directly collect 
the assessments imposed on the remaining benefitted property by sending out a bill prior 
to, or during, November 2023. It is important to pay your assessment because failure to 
pay will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property which may result in loss of 
title, or for direct billed assessments, may result in a foreclosure action, which also may 
result in a loss of title. The District's decision to collect assessments on the tax roll or by 
direct billing does not preclude the District from later electing to collect those or other 
assessments in a different manner at a future time. 

Additional Provisions 

The public hearings and meeting are open to the public and will be conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of Florida law. A copy of the Proposed Budget, proposed 
assessment roll, and the agenda for the hearings and meeting may be obtained at the 
offices of the District Manager, located at 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, 
Florida 33410, Ph: 561-630-4922 ("District Manager's Office"), during normal business 
hours. The public hearings and meeting may be continued to a date, time, and place to be 
specified on the record at the hearings or meeting. There may be occasions when staff or 
board members may participate by speaker telephone. 

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or 
physical impairment should contact the District Manager's Office at least forty-eight (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 
Florida Belay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY)/ 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), 
for aid in contacting the District Manager's Office. 

Please note that all affected property owners have the right to appear at the public 
hearings and meeting, and may also file written objections with the District Manager's Office 
within twenty days of publication of this notice. Each person who decides to appeal any 
decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the public hearings or 
meeting is advised that person will need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the 
testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 

Kathleen Meneely 
District Manager 

\ .. 
\ 

,-~--7.·. 
oc~,- .. , ) l 
--·-; I 

/ I 
/ 

·✓ 
I 

I 

I 
I 

' I 
I 
I 

L--1 
I 
L- 

B~!}.~~~:;:_ BLUE LAKE COO ANO DEVELOPMENT 
LOCATION MAP 

EXHIBIT 1 

...... ,=- 

,;;~.--- '--~ Page 8



160 I FRIDAY, JULY 14, 2023 I NAPLES DAILY NEWS 

Public Notices Public Notices 

BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PISTRJCT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE 
ASCAL YEAR 202lf202◄ BUDGET; NOTICE Of PUBLIC HEARING TO 
CONSIDER THE IMPOSITION OF OPERATIONS AHO MAINTENANCE 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, ADOPTION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL, ANO 
THE LEVY, COLLECTION, AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE SAME; AND 
NOTICE OF REGULAR BOAAO OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING, 

Up<....,.,.._...Kf!tn•dlle@•M ....... 
Thtbdd~1tlkl•4'11,;,1tieflAUM~10....., .,,. lliNrlcl 

('(h1lficl') .... ~'ll,j 111 l""-'g l_lV...., l,u,,">Q1 ll"ld Jri9,P '"-'°'11 ......,..,Jan 
TNC: 1:«I ,.,,., 
LOC.I. IIOJ,I • IW-.,. lori.,I B.111 .. 

11m 'Nldllu oll,d. 
FootMr-,o,rl•k!,ntts 

Th, lnl 1dk1-n;i i, l;ef"! .. l r,,., ..... t~O"'I\( ... 1!10 f,ni.,SU!vl-HI 
,KM• p.t,:lc <="' r': and obloctft er\ h 0... '1 r,~ l>.i,%fl t'Plopo-.d 
llu~'l I,;, ,t. ~ (:dtf>r 1, 1013'"'1 or,d.t'Q$,,J,(..,t,j,1 :SO , ?:tl'~tFioulV .. 
:io1a11n••~ n.. uccr\sl p..t:>aic 11t;r ""11tbt"Oh.id w,.n 1octi.J ~-.1&0r., 1&7, 
fhrir»~IO~• lhel-opadlcndCl)OJ~ lrld"'ll1trW!Ce ~ 
n-""' .-ll 1 ("CUI Aa11-t1") upc:,, ti,e ll,,d o lo< ll..:l "'~~ !he Oe,,~, lo 11m !~I 
P1opo,.td~1,;,l~v .. m.)l;,Q2 1,1o~hl..:lc¢on ol.,,u ... .,, .,,. 
rd, .-o!, IOl'~IOI "'-~.~\ •>d ,n('o,tr.:d al ..-w.u, k !ho 
w,,:Ul,>O'I QI \hit"""'''- h Boor d ..: I. t,/ •M:l.la,. ~ o ~ _.,~ i..y OU.I 
,...., .,.,e'l' ,nrrwly~D'~byf>tbd.ABc. t"'N'hgdth!OMlttff .i.c,~ 
heid"'-1"8e.o.d"'ay<Of'llioaorrr1..,.Dlol,1ctruar.., 

SELL IT 
BUYIT 
FIND IT 

Thoililn.lrtpcm°'-..,.~°"'cr1t.iot i::e-lp,Of,S'l yv:tr. .. 10ii.lr lr.',t0':ho 
µ,pc.w ::1 v~r, the ow,jd·• g,s,e il adm"' 'lr.r'J .. ~ rd..,~....,. 
b;do.t, ... ge<l')'JJhi<deric!01oltho1'oporfyr,d~/~1ohpropowdout 
A.wum .-tolti.:¥11 iiltd n1••,-oi:: .t.c:t.i i.1fo. 'lhs l>do bolow lhow> lhtocht ::\f, 
c,! It• ~ Q&.'J ,..._.,.,., wicf, lft ~IC.'I 10 eta,,,,•• 1h111 .. , 

LandU.• Total I of A-ffOIMAl-r.1ft 
Unlt1 Jn<Wngc.itn .. u1hl 

..ty~ d,i- if 

Thi~ '-"91 .-ldrnttlr,g ro -1oh P"Uio: nl ...ii C• oond.d td r. 
IQ!l'dmr..11,111p.,.._.dfbd~ln'. A-,othPlaro&td~.r:<ooowd 
-.:«l 1,il lrld ~ ~l ltt l~t ,-r,go rd n:Hlr,g 11: 1¥/ l'I gbo.-..d ll l~~ 
dri<a d thl tl~ I.I"'""'°' ~..:I_., '501A 8->T>I Ra.od , J> .... e.Jd, C...~ 
~• 3J..110, Ph: !:til-912 ~Jl!rkl M-'a Offlct"l ,t.,r,g,.,....II ....,_ 

~~-;,~~':~~"'"'~~~!~;::!.i~~~i;: t,;a,d,,,_..._.,,,,l'Ot!c,f .. ~111~1oloJl',c,- t. 

l,;.y ps ..:r, 1~ '111-., zl~~•llfl n:~t-d,diuMl y,;, 
~mr-,,: ..... 1hDAd r,Cl'lld h 0...i=l M,......,., OIU.11 lou:. l,..:y-.._p fl') 
~~

1S.;~:~~t:~.~~~~m'~ 
I:, :ICIO':,:>"Udr,glho!>wl<lMria.;•'•Cllia. 

~f-I:f~.~~.:Ft~~~~r:~~ 
cltd1i;no,~l:y':tll!blrd11.,,1~lo,n;,._f!',er-d,t:.ll,.,.p.,t'-~ta'i'>;s:r 

r::-:~Si:.~~L~Ef.£:t;o~~~--:.~~~:~: 
~"->Wt 
(ill'i.:Mr-l?<O 

', 
\ 

,./:iJ' '· \ ' \ 
: r~- 

~ --- 
~ - ~ 1 L .,,. ..... 

cars 

garage sales 

tickets 

jobs 

antiques 

motorcycles 

computers 

boats 

sports 
equipment 

pets 

instruments 

jewelry 

furniture 

tablets 

auctions 

yard sales 

collectibles 

appliances 

cameras 

coins 

Place Your 
Classified 
Ad Today. 

SELL YOUR CAR 
FIND YARD SALE 

GET A JOB 
ADOPT A PET 
BUYA BOAT 

FIND A TREASURE 
GET A MASSAGE 

"To you, it's the 
perfect lift chair. 

To me, it's the best sleep 
chair I've ever had." 

- J. Fitzgerald, VA 

You can't always lie down in bed and sleep. Heartburn, cardiac 
problems, hip or back aches - and dozens of other ailments 
and worries. Those are the nights you'd give anything for a 
comfortable chair to sleep in: one that reclines to exactly the 
right degree, raises your feet and legs just where you want 
them, supports your head and shoulders properly, and~ 
.al.1b.11..to..u~b ... o.h .. b.ut12na 
Our Perfect Sleep Ch3ir® does all that and more. More than 
a chair or recliner, it's designed to provide total comfort. 
Choose your preferred heat and massage settings, for hours 
of soothing relaxation. Reading or watching TV? Our chair's 
recline technology allows you to pause the chair in an infinite 
number of settings. And best of all, it features a powerful lift 
mechanism that tilts the entire chair forward, making it easy to 
stand. You'll love the other benefits, too. It helps with correct 
spinal alignment and promotes back pressure relief, to prevent 
back and muscle pain. The overstuffed, oversized biscuit 
style back and unique seat design will cradle you in comfort. 
Generously filled, wide armrests provide enhanced arm support 
when sitting or reclining. It even has a battery backup in case 
of a power outage. 

White glove delivery included in shipping charge. Professionals 
will deliver the chair to the exact spot in your home where 
you want it, unpack it, inspect it, test it, position it, and even 
carry the packagi1;1g away! You get your choke of Luxurious 
and Lasting Miralux, Genuine Italian Leather, stain and liquid 
repellent Duralux with the classic leather look, or plush MicroLux 
microfiber, all handcrafted in a variety of colors to fit any decor. 
Call now! 

journey.£' per,ect. 
sleepchoir 

888-717-9419 
Please mention code 116687 when ordering. 

Long Lasting Duraluxr"' 
sl.lin&/1qvid,epr-//~r,: 

MicroLux TM Microfiber 
Ur.alhlble&11rnatiri9/ysof! 

REMOTE-CONffiOLLEO 
EASILY SHIFTS FROM FLAT TO 
A STANO-ASSIST POSITION 

Genuine Ital/an Leather 
daui" beai,ly & slyle 

CEmMlrafux1"' 
/1Uu1iotn& b,ting 

Suk!le Cl>ncola1• 

mobility I sleep I comfort I safety 
enjoying life never gets old'M 

Because each Perfect Sleep Chair is a made-to-order bedding 
product it cannot be returned, but if it arrives damaged or 

defective, at our option we will repair it or replace it. © 2022 
Journey Health and lifestyle. 

Check out the classified ads everyday. 
Page 9



 

 

RESOLUTION 2023-03 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE ANNUAL 
APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2024; AUTHORIZING 
BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2023, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Blue Lake Community Development 
District (“District”) proposed budget (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024 (“Fiscal Year 2023/2024”) along with an explanatory and 
complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget 
for the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to 
defray all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, 
including reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during 
the fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and hereby 
approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

Page 10



 

 

 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit A, as amended by the Board, is 

hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget 
may be subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to 
reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Blue Lake Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2024.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption and shall remain on the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024, the sum of $1,130,530 to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or otherwise, 
which sum is deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District 
during said budget year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND   $ 466,833  
 
 DEBT SERVICE FUND – SERIES 2019  $ 663,697  
 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS    $ 1,130 530  
  
 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2023/2024, or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2023/2024, may amend its 
Adopted Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. A line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund may be decreased or 
increased by motion of the Board recorded in the minutes, and approving the 
expenditure, if the total appropriations of the fund do not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would 

increase or decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund if 
the total appropriations of the fund do not increase and if either (i) the aggregate 
change in the original appropriation item does not exceed the greater of $15,000 

Page 11



 

 

or 15% of the original appropriation, or (ii) such expenditure is authorized by 
separate disbursement or spending resolution. 

 
c. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to the budget under 
paragraph c. above are posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain 
on the website for at least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 8TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2023.  
 
ATTEST:      BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 
              
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget 
  

Page 12



 

 

Exhibit A 
 

Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget 

Page 13



  Blue Lake
 Community Development District

    Final Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2023/2024

      October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



RESOLUTION 2023-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND 
IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; PROVIDING FOR 
THE COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, INCLUDING 
BUT NOT LIMITED TO PENALTIES AND INTEREST THEREON; CERTIFYING AN 
ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Blue Lake Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in Lee County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 
30, 2024 (“Fiscal Year 2023/2024”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2023/2024; and 
 

Page 20



 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the assessment roll 
(“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” and to certify the portion of the 
Assessment Roll related to certain developed property (“Tax Roll Property”) to the County Tax 
Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method and to directly collect the portion of the Assessment 
Roll relating to the remaining property (“Direct Collect Property”), all as set forth in Exhibit “B;” 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll adopted herein, including that portion certified to the County Tax 
Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The provision of the services, facilities, and 
operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and peculiar benefit to the lands within 
the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. The allocation of the 
assessments to the specially benefitted lands is shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” and is hereby 
found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, 
and using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special 
assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied 
on benefitted lands within the District and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”  The lien of 
the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for 
operation and maintenance assessments. 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; INTEREST.   
 

A. Tax Roll Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Tax Roll Property 
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes in 
accordance with the Uniform Method, as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.”   
 

Page 21



B. Direct Bill Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Direct Collect 
Property shall be collected directly by the District in accordance with Florida law, as 
set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.” Assessments directly collected by the District are 
due in full on December 1, 2023; provided, however, that, to the extent permitted by 
law, the assessments due may be paid in several partial, deferred payments and 
according to the following schedule:  50% due no later than December 1, 2023, 25% 
due no later than February 1, 2024 and 25% due no later than May 1, 2024.  In the 
event that an assessment payment is not made in accordance with the schedule 
stated above, the whole assessment – including any remaining partial, deferred 
payments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024, shall immediately become due and payable; shall 
accrue interest, penalties in the amount of one percent (1%) per month, and all costs 
of collection and enforcement; and shall either be enforced pursuant to a foreclosure 
action, or, at the District’s sole discretion, collected pursuant to the Uniform Method 
on a future tax bill, which amount may include penalties, interest, and costs of 
collection and enforcement. Any prejudgment interest on delinquent assessments 
shall accrue at the rate of any bonds secured by the assessments, or at the statutory 
prejudgment interest rate, as applicable.  In the event an assessment subject to direct 
collection by the District shall be delinquent, the District Manager and District 
Counsel, without further authorization by the Board, may initiate foreclosure 
proceedings pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or other applicable law to 
collect and enforce the whole assessment, as set forth herein.   
 

C. Future Collection Methods.  The decision to collect special assessments by any 
particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such 
method will be used to collect special assessments in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, 
regardless of past practices.   

 
 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified for collection.  That portion of the Assessment Roll which includes 
the Tax Roll Property is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the 
County Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom 
shall be paid to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep apprised of 
all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date of this 
Resolution, and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for such 
time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 

Page 22



 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of August, 2023. 
 
ATTEST:      BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________          
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
Exhibit A: Budget 
Exhibit B: Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 

Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 
 

Page 23



 

 
 

1

FUNDING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

AND ________________________ 
 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of the _____ day of 
____________________, 2023, is made and entered into by and among: 

 
Blue Lake Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and located within Lee 
County, Florida (hereinafter “District”), and 

 
_________________, a _____________________(hereinafter "Developer") with an 
address of ______________________________________. 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Blue Lake Community Development District (“District”) was 
established by an ordinance adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of Lee County, 
Florida, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining 
certain infrastructure, including but not limited to surface water management, utilities, and other 
infrastructure; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, 
of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure within or 
without the boundaries of the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to undertake the repair of various infrastructure 

improvements that were damaged by Hurricane Ian (the “Repairs”) but does not have sufficient 
funds to pay for the Repairs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that certain portions of the Repairs, 
as such portions are defined in a Funding Authorization as set forth in more detail herein, will 
need to be undertaken prior to the District obtaining adequate financing for the Repairs and, as a 
result, the District will not have funds available to pay for the Repairs until it obtains such 
financing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has determined that the execution and delivery by the Developer 
of this Agreement is necessary in order to proceed with the Repairs subject to Funding 
Authorizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to assist the District to proceed with portions of the Repairs defined in a 
Funding Authorization, the Developer is willing to deliver this Agreement.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual 

Page 24



 

 
 

2

covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The recitals stated above are true and correct 
and by reference are incorporated herein as a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 2. FUNDING.  To the extent the District needs funds for the construction, installation, 
and acquisition of the Repairs, Developer is willing to make available to the District such 
funding subject to the terms of this Agreement.  The provision of funding is in the Developer’s 
sole discretion provided by this Agreement.  The District may request funding from the 
Developer, and the Developer agrees to notify the District within ten (10) days as to whether 
such funding will be provided.  Each funding request shall be authorized in writing by the 
Developer.  The written authorization shall be incorporated in a funding authorization which 
shall include the scope of services, cost proposal, and schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit 
A (“Funding Authorization”).  Developer will make such funds available according to the 
manner in which the District will be invoiced by the contractor as specified in Exhibit A.  The 
funds shall be placed in the District's depository as determined by the District.  The District 
acknowledges that the Developer and any lender designated by Developer providing financing to 
Developer for any Repairs in the District shall have a right to enter upon any property of the 
District for the purpose of inspection of the progress of construction. 

 
 3. REPAYMENT.  Subject to the limitations below, the parties agree that funds 
provided by Developer pursuant to this Agreement are intended to be properly reimbursable 
from financing to be obtained by the District, including, but not limited to from the proceeds of 
the any future issuance of tax-exempt bonds.  Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of sufficient 
financing by the District, the District shall reimburse Developer in full, exclusive of interest, for 
the funds advanced under paragraph two (2) above.  The District agrees to make diligent efforts 
to obtain financing to make the repayments contemplated herein and such repayments shall be 
due no later than __ years from the date that the funding was provided by the Developer pursuant 
to a Funding Authorization.   
 
 4. DEFAULT.  A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other 
to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of 
damages, injunctive relief and/or specific performance.   
 
 5. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either party is required to 
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party, as 
determined by the applicable court or other dispute resolution provider, shall be entitled to 
recover from the non-prevailing party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs incurred prior to or during any litigation or other dispute resolution proceedings 
including all fees and costs incurred in appellate proceedings. 
 
 6. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression 
of this Agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Page 25



 

Page 3 of 7 

 
 7. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both of the 
parties hereto. 
 
 8. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the 
requirements of law, and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this instrument. 
 
 9. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications hereunder 
("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage 
prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 
 
  A. If to Developer: _______________ 
      ___________ 
      ________________     
     Attn: _________________ 
 
  B. If to District:  Blue Lake  

Community Development District 
      2501 A Burns Road 
      Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
      Attn: District Manager 
 

With a copy to: Kutak Rock. 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida  32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 
 Except as otherwise provided herein, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address set forth herein.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of 
delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business 
day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, 
Sundays and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as 
business days.  Counsel for the parties may deliver Notice on behalf of the parties.  Any party or 
other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and 
addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the 
same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

10. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
formal parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or 
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed 

Page 26



 

Page 4 of 7 

or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than 
the parties hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 
provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and 
conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties 
hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 11. NEGOTIATION AT ARM’S LENGTH.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the parties as an arms length transaction.  All parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, all parties are deemed to have drafted, chosen 
and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against 
either party. 
 
 12. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement nor any monies to 
become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other party; provided, however, 
the Developer may collaterally assign its rights and obligation under this Agreement to any 
institutional lender providing financing to Developer for funding of improvements to property 
within the District. 
 
 13. CONTROLLING LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall 
be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. 
  
 14. EFFECTIVE DATE.  The Agreement shall be effective after execution by both 
parties hereto and shall remain in effect unless terminated by either of the parties hereto. 
 

15. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Developer understands and agrees that all documents of any 
kind provided to the District or to District Staff in connection with the work contemplated under 
this Agreement are public records and are treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

17. SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY.  The Developer agrees that nothing in this Agreement 
shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s limitations on liability contained in 
Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statutes or law. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 27



 

Page 5 of 7 

18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
  
 
Attest:      BLUE LAKE 
      COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
__________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      a _____________________________ 
WITNESS:       
 
_________________________  ______________________________ 
Signature 
      By:___________________________ 
_________________________  Its:___________________________ 
Print Name 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

Page 6 of 7 

EXHIBIT A 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION NUMBER ____ 

 
_____________________, 2023 

 
[DEVELOPER] (“Developer”) 
 

Subject: Funding Authorization Number _____ 
   Blue Lake Community Development District 
 
Dear [DEVELOPER]: 
 

 Pursuant to that certain Funding Agreement between the Blue Lake Community Development 
District and ________________ dated _____________, 2023 (“Funding Agreement”), the Blue Lake 
Community Development District (“District”) submits this funding authorization to provide funding for 
the construction, installation, and acquisition of public infrastructure for Repairs, as such term is defined 
in the Funding Agreement. 

 
I. Scope of Construction, Installation and/or Acquisition  
 

Blue Lake Community Development District seeks to engage the services of 
______________________ (“Contractor”), as __________________ to 
_____________________ (“Services”) pursuant the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit 
A (“Proposal”).  

 
II. Proposal Cost 
 

As compensation for the Services described in the Proposal, the District will be required 
to pay the Contractor a total of ________________ Dollars ($______________).  Subject 
to the terms of the Funding Agreement, the Developer agrees to provide the District with 
funding in an amount not to exceed the Proposal Cost. 
 

III. Payment Schedule  
 
Select one of the following: 
 

Contractor will invoice the District a lump sum amount for the Services set forth in the 
proposal.  By accepting this funding request, the Developer agrees to provide the 
District with funding equal to such lump sum amount within (10) days of receipt of 
Contractor’s invoice from the District. 

 
Contractor will invoice the District monthly for the proportion of Services completed 
during the preceding month.  By accepting this funding request, the Developer agrees 
to provide the District with funding equal to the amount of the applicable monthly 
invoice within (10) days of receipt of Contractor’s invoice from the District. 

 
IV. Authorization to Enter Into Agreement  
 

Page 29



 

Page 7 of 7 

Subject to approval of this Funding Authorization, the District intends to enter into an 
agreement with the Contractor for the Services as described above (“Agreement”). A 
form of the Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit B. By accepting this Funding 
Authorization, the Developer authorizes the District to enter into an agreement with 
Contractor and further agrees to provide funding for the Services according to the terms 
of this Funding Authorization. 

 
 This Funding Authorization, together with the Proposal and the Funding Agreement, represents 
the entire understanding between the District and Developer with regard to the referenced funding 
authorization. If you wish to accept this Funding Authorization, please sign both copies where indicated, 
and return one complete copy to our office.  Upon receipt, we will promptly enter into an agreement for 
the Services.  
 
 Thank you for your consideration. 

 
 
 
 
 

      
Chairman/Vice Chairman 
Blue Lake Community Development District  

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED 
 
 

By:   
Authorized Representative of 
[DEVELOPER] 

 
Date:   

 
 

Page 30



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE 
LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING 
A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 
AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT 
MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Blue Lake Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2023/2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2023/2024 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND EFFECTIVE THIS 8th DAY OF AUGUST, 2023. 

 

 
ATTEST: BLUE LAKE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 31



 
 

BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the Blue Lake Community 
Development District will hold Regular Board Meetings at the WildBlue Social Building, 18721 
WildBlue Boulevard, Fort Myers, Florida 33913 at 1:00 p.m. on the following dates: 
 

October 10, 2023 
November 14, 2023 
December 12, 2023 

January 9, 2024 
February 13, 2024 

March 12, 2024 
April 9, 2024 
May 14 2024 
June 11, 2024 
July 9, 2024 

August 13, 2024 
September 10, 2024 

 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  Meetings are 
open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  Copies 
of the Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website or by contacting 
the District Manager at 239-444-5790 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of the 
particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or two Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the 
discussions taking place.  Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time and place 
specified on the record.  
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at 239-444-5790 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.bluelakecdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  NAPLES DAILY NEWS  
 

Page 32



RESOLUTION 2023-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECORDS 
MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING THE DUTIES 
OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; DETERMINING 
THE ELECTRONIC RECORD TO BE THE OFFICIAL RECORD; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Blue Lake Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to adopt rules to 
govern the administration of the District and to adopt resolutions as may be necessary for 
the conduct of District business; and 

WHEREAS, Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, requires the District to establish 
and maintain an active and continuing program for the economical and efficient 
management of records and to provide for the appointment of a records management liaison 
officer (“Records Management Liaison Officer”); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires for the Records Management Liaison Officer to be 
an employee of the District or an employee of the District Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to authorize the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer, which may or may not be the District’s 
records custodian; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to prescribe duties of the Records Management 
Liaison Officer and provide for the assignment of additional duties; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution a records retention policy (the “Records 
Retention Policy”) for immediate use and application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

SECTION 1. The District hereby authorizes the District’s records custodian to 
appoint a Records Management Liaison Officer and report such appointment to the 
appropriate State of Florida agencies.  A Records Management Liaison Officer shall be an 
employee of the District or the District Manager.  The Board, and the District’s records 
custodian, shall each have the individual power to remove the Records Management 

Page 33



Liaison Officer at any time for any reason.  Immediately following the removal or 
resignation of a Records Management Liaison Officer, the District’s records custodian 
shall appoint a replacement Records Management Liaison Officer. 

SECTION 2. The duties of the Records Management Liaison Officer shall include 
the following: 

A. Serve as the District’s contact with the Florida Department of State, State 
Library and Archives of Florida; 

B. Coordinate the District’s records inventory;  

C. Maintain records retention and disposition forms;  

D. Coordinate District records management training;  

E. Develop records management procedures consistent with the Records 
Retention Policy, as amended as provided herein;  

F. Participate in the development of the District’s development of electronic 
record keeping systems;  

G. Submit annual compliance statements;  

H. Work with the Florida Department of State, State Library and Archives of 
Florida to establish individual retention schedules for the District, from time 
to time and as may be necessary; and 

I. Such other duties as may be assigned by the Board or the District’s records 
custodian in the future. 

SECTION 3. The District hereby adopts as its Records Retention Policy the 
applicable provisions of Section 257.36(5), Florida Statutes, the rules adopted by the 
Division of Library and Information Services of the Department of State (“Division”) 
pursuant to Section 257.36, Florida Statutes, and the General Records Schedules 
established by the Division.  However, the District will retain certain records longer than 
required by the General Records Schedules established by the Division as set forth in 
Exhibit A.  To the extent the above statute, rules or schedules are amended or supplemented 
in the future, the District’s Records Retention Policy shall automatically incorporate such 
amendment or supplement provided that such automatic amendment shall not reduce the 
retention times set forth in Exhibit A.  The Records Retention Policy shall remain in full 
force and effect until such time as the Board amends the Policy. 

SECTION 4. In accordance with section 668.50, Florida Statutes, and section 
119.01, Florida Statutes, the Board finds that the electronic record shall be considered the 
official record and any paper originals are hereby duplicates which may be disposed of 
unless required to be preserved by any applicable statute, rule or ordinance. 

Page 34



SECTION 5.   If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the 
other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 6. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage; shall 
replace, supplant, and supersede any prior policy or resolution of the District regarding 
records retention; and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the District Board of Supervisors, this 8th 
day of August, 2023. 

ATTEST:     BLUE LAKE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
 
Print name: ___________________  Print name: __________________________ 
       Secretary / Assistant Secretary                  Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Amendments to General Records Schedules Established by the Division 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 35



Exhibit A 
 

Amendments to General Records Schedules established by the Division 
 

ADVERTISEMENTS: LEGAL (Item #25) 
The District shall retain mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to 
proceedings under uniform method of collection of debt assessments permanently.  The District shall retain 
mailed and published legal advertisements, and corresponding affidavits, relating to the levy of assessments 
securing bonds for five (5) fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released, or until three (3) 
calendar years after related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
AUDITS: INDEPENDENT (Item #56) 
The District shall retain the record copy of independent audits for ten (10) fiscal years or until three (3) 
calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  DETAIL (Item #340) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for five (5) fiscal 
years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds are 
redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
DISBURSEMENT RECORDS:  SUMMARY (Item #341) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ANNUAL REPORTS (Item #107) 
The District shall retain the record copy of disbursement records relating to the use of bonds for ten (10) 
fiscal years provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar years after all related 
bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
INCIDENT REPORT FILES (Item #241) 
The District shall retain incident reports for five (5) anniversary years from the date of the incident. 
 
MINUTES:  OFFICIAL MEETINGS (PRELIMINARY/AUDIO RECORDINGS/VIDEO RECORDINGS 
(Item #4) 
The District shall retain audio recordings of board of supervisor meetings for five (5) calendar years after 
adoption of the official minutes. 
 
PROJECT FILES:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT (Item #136) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for projects funded with bonds for ten (10) fiscal 
years after completion of the project provided applicable audits have been released or until three (3) calendar 
years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION (Item #364) 
The District shall retain the record copy of project files for condemnation/demolition projects funded with 
bonds for five (5) anniversary years after final action or until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds 
are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 
REAL PROPERTY RECORDS:  PROPERTY ACQUIRED (Item #172) 
The District shall retain the record copy of documents related to property acquisitions funded with bonds for 
three (3) fiscal years after final disposition of the property provided applicable audits have been released or 
until three (3) calendar years after all related bonds are redeemed, whichever is later.  The record copy of 
deeds and easements shall be kept permanently. 
 

Page 36



 Blue Lake
Community Development District

   Financial Report For
July 2023

Page 37



Page 38


	Blue Lake Community Development District - August 8, 2023 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 11, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Final Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-04 – Adopting an Annual Assessment Resolution FiscalYear 2023/2024

	Consider Approval of Funding Agreement between the District and Lennar
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Meeting Schedule
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-06 – Adopting a Records Retention Policy




